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From: Zajicek, Michael (COMM)
To: Harsch, Trey (PUC)
Cc: Teigland, Peter (He/Him/His) (COMM); De, Adway (COMM); Zwick, Ari (COMM)
Subject: RE: PUC Ex-Parte: Questions on Docket 23-215
Date: Friday, May 31, 2024 2:51:31 PM
Attachments: Zajicek-M-23-215 ltr- 5.31.24.pdf

Hi Trey,
 
Please see the attached letter responding to your questions. As the responses to your questions
change the Department’s recommendations slightly, we will be filing the attached letter in eDockets.
Please let us know if you have any questions.
 
Thanks!
 
Michael Zajicek
 
 

From: Harsch, Trey (PUC) <trey.harsch@state.mn.us> 
Sent: Thursday, May 23, 2024 10:46 AM
To: Teigland, Peter (He/Him/His) (COMM) <Peter.Teigland@state.mn.us>; Zwick, Ari (COMM)
<Ari.Zwick@state.mn.us>
Cc: MacAlister, Jamie (COMM) <jamie.macalister@state.mn.us>; Nikitas, Sophie (She/Her/Hers)
(PUC) <sophie.nikitas@state.mn.us>; Nissen, Will (PUC) <will.nissen@state.mn.us>
Subject: PUC Ex-Parte: Questions on Docket 23-215
 
Hello Department Staff!
 
In reviewing the Department’s supplemental comments, I came across several items that I believe
require additional information and clarification. Please note, Staff is treating this email as ex-parte
communication, and will be forwarding filing this email exchange in the record. I’d be happy to
answer any clarifying questions may have about this request. Do not hesitate to contact me with
questions.
 

1. In reviewing CenterPoint’s initial petition, it is Staff’s understanding that Pilot O is intended to
fulfil the requirement under Subd. 6 of the NGIA. Both of the Departments alternative
portfolios exclude Pilot O. Is the Department’s position that its proposed modifications fulfill
the requirements of Subd. 6 through another pilot? Please elaborate as necessary.

 
2. The Department’s first alternative budget allocates more than 10% of the Plan’s budget

toward R&D projects. It is Staff’s understanding that Subd. 3.(g) of the NGIA prevents R&D
spending from exceeding 10% of the proposed total incremental costs of the Innovation Plan.
Please explain the Department’s interpretation of Subd. 3.(g). Is the Department’s position
that its first alternative portfolio meets the requirements of Subd. 3.(g)?

 
Best,
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May 31, 2024 
 
 
Will Seuffert 
Executive Secretary 
Minnesota Public Utilities Commission 
121 7th Place East, Suite 350 
St. Paul, Minnesota 55101-2147 
 
 
RE: Comments of the Minnesota Department of Commerce, Division of Energy Resources 


In the Matter of The Company’s First Natural Gas Innovation Act Innovation Plan 
Docket No. G008/M-23-215 


 
 
Dear Mr. Seuffert: 
 
On May 15, 2024, the Minnesota Department of Commerce, Division of Energy Resources 
(Department) submitted its Reply Comments1 to the Minnesota Public Utilities Commission 
(Commission) regarding the Natural Gas Innovation Act Innovation Plan2 of CenterPoint Energy (CPE, 
CenterPoint, or the Company). In its Initial Comments3 and Reply Comments the Department made 
many recommendations, among which were the recommendation that the Commission deny 
CenterPoint’s proposed Pilot O and to reclassify a portion of Pilot E’s expense as R&D spending.  
On May 23, 2024, the Department was emailed by Commission staff requesting clarification on the 
Department’s position on these two items, as Minn. Stat. § 216B.2427, subd. 6 requires that the 
Company’s innovation plan include a pilot program similar to Pilot O, and as the Department’s 
proposed reclassification of a portion of Pilot E’s expense resulted a budget that resulted in more than 
10% of the plan’s budget going toward R&D projects, which violates a limit set by Minnesota Statute § 
216B.2427, Subd. 3 (g). Below is the Department’s response to these two clarifying questions. 
 
First, in response to the question regarding the Department’s recommendation that the Commission 
deny the Company’s Pilot O, the Department notes that Company’s proposed Pilot O did not meet the 
criteria required by Minn. Stat. § 216B.2427, subd. 6, as the statue specifically requires that, “[t]he 
pilot program must provide incentives for businesses to implement recommendations made by the 
audit.” The Company’s proposed Pilot O included the required audit, but the possible incentives for 
businesses to implement the recommendations are contingent on participation in Pilots H and M. The 


 
1 Department of Commerce, Division of Energy Resources, Comments, Docket No. G008/M-23-215 (May 15, 2024) 
(eDocket# 20245-206792-02) 
2 In the Matter of Petition by CenterPoint Energy for Approval of its First Natural Gas Innovation Plan, Docket No. 
G008/M23-215, CPE Petition, (June 28, 2023). (eDocket No. 20236-196995-01) 
3 Department of Commerce, Division of Energy Resources,  Reply Comments, Docket No. G008/M-23-215 (January 16, 2024) 
(eDocket# 20241-202261-02) 
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Department recommends denial of Pilots H and M, because they were programs that could already 
have been implemented under the ECO program. If the Commission were to implement the 
Department’s recommendations regarding Pilots H and M—then the Company’s proposed Pilot O 
would still not comply with the statutory requirement to provide incentives for businesses to 
implement the recommendations of the audit. As the Department maintains its position that the 
Commission should deny the Company’s proposed Pilots H and M, the Department recommends that 
the Commission require CPE to file another independent version of Pilot O compliant with subd. 6 
within 60 days of the Commission’s Order on the Company’s Natural Gas Innovation Act Innovation 
Plan. 
 
Second, in response to the question about the Department’s recommendation resulting in a budget 
that allocates more than 10% of the Plan’s budget toward R&D in violation of Minnesota Statute § 
216B.2427, subd. 3 (g), the Department notes that the higher percentage was caused by the 
Department’s recommendation to reclassify a portion of Pilot E’s expense as R&D spending. Because 
there is not a firm definition of what is or is not R&D spending in the relevant statute, the Department 
concludes that this issue could be resolved by the removal of Department’s recommendation to 
reclassify that portion of Pilot E’s costs as R&D spending. The Department calculated that doing so 
would result in R&D spending for the Plan’s budget falling back below the 10 percent cap. As such the 
Department withdraws its recommendation to reclassify a portion of Pilot E’s costs. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
/s/ Dr. Sydnie Lieb 
Assistant Commissioner of Regulatory Affairs 
 







Trey Harsch
Rates Analyst III | Economic Analysis Unit
Pronouns: He/Him
 
Minnesota Public Utilities Commission

121 7th Place E, Suite 350
Saint Paul, MN 55101-2147
O: 651-201-2232
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